Approved: March 31, 2006

Date

MINUTES OF THE HOUSE TAXATION COMMITTEE

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Kenny Wilk at 9:45 A.M. on March 10, 2006 in Room 519-S of the Capitol.

All members were present.

Committee staff present:

Chris Courtwright, Legislative Research Department Martha Dorsey, Legislative Research Department Gordon Self, Revisor of Statutes Rose Marie Glatt, Committee Secretary

Conferees appearing before the committee:

Others attending:

See attached list.

HB 2023 - Classes of cities for sales tax purposes; uniformity

The Chairman reviewed previous actions on the bill which consisted of Representative Owens' motion to remove the excise tax from the sales tax uniformity. Currently **Substitute HB 2023** is simply \$.02 tax for the general fund and \$.01 for the special fund, restoring uniformity with sales tax, and creates one class of cities for all cities in the state. All excise issue have been removed from the bill. The Chairman opened the floor for continued discussion.

Representative Siegfreid said, that in his opinion, anything they do in the Legislature should be done based on facts, decided after intellectual arguments. After considerable thought, he said that he has decided to air his position on this matter. He commended the Committee for their hard work on the issue at hand and believed that they had dealt with each other with integrity.

<u>HB 2023</u> was based on an agreement that was formulated in a meeting in November 2005, in Lenexa, KS. Some members, who were in agreement, withdrew from that agreement last week, to the surprise of everyone concerned. Representative Siegfreid compared what recently transpired to little more than using a "bait and switch" tactic. He said components of the bill that pleased everyone, were seriously damaged by the interests of other parties. To that end, he said he cannot vote for <u>HB 2023</u>, as it is a bill that is based on a lie. He cannot support a bill that does not provide equal benefit for all parties that were part of the agreement.

This bill was trying to solve a public policy problem in Kansas, and remove the courts from controlling tax policy in Kansas, and now fails to do so, and in his opinion, directs them back to another lawsuit.

The Chairman asked for comments from the other members of the sub-committee, Representative Owens and Thull.

Representative Owen said that by the time this matter came to the sub-committee, it was their impression that there was an agreement among all parties. They took action, based on that fact, as reflected in the sub-committee report. Subsequently they discovered that there wasn't an agreement, which clearly showed that someone was not telling the truth. Therefore, there was a disagreement over what the parties believed was in the agreement in November 2005, and the agreement understood by the sub-committee members.

Having said that, Representative Owens still believes that <u>HB 2023</u> is an appropriate bill. It deals with the basic issue of sales tax uniformity. The remainder of the issue on the excise taxes is a different subject and can be dealt with separately. He said in his opinion, it is important for the state of Kansas to pass out the bill to make sure they have taken care of the sales tax uniformity question. He said there needs to be more debate and discussion regarding the impact of the excise tax. The real issue is the fact that the developing community does not want to pay more than what they think they should to help cities develop infrastructure. These issues should be split out to allow all parties the opportunity to be heard, however this should not stop the Committees action

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE House Taxation Committee at 9:00 A.M. on March 10, 2006 in Room 519-S of the Capitol.

on the sales tax uniformity issue, currently in HB 2023, as amended.

Representative Thull said he was very disappointed that the agreement fell apart and he concurred with the statements made by Representatives Siegfried and Owens. There are two issues to address, and he said that he didn't want to delay action on the sales tax uniformity issue, therefore he would support HB 2023, as amended. He trusts the committee process, that allows for open dialogue between all parties involved to achieve a resolution to the excise tax issue.

Chairman Wilk talked about the importance of the integrity of sub-committee work that formulates resolutions for consideration by the Committee. He commended Representative Siegfreid for his leadership, and Representatives Owens and Thull for the work they did on <u>HB 2023</u>. He thanked Secretary Wagnon and her staff for their investment of time and effort, as well as the participants who were invited to join in that sub-committee work.

On behalf of the Institution, Chairman Wilk expressed concern over the process that had occurred. He said, "Whenever any Committee Chairman appoints a sub-committee and invites interested parties to participate, it should be taken seriously. If an agreement cannot be reached, make that clear, but do not participate in the sub-committee discussion, strike an agreement, have the agreement brought forth by the members and have the agreement unravel. When an agreement is struck, an agreement should be held." He said that he, nor any of the Committee members, appreciated the actions of certain parties who undermined the work that had been done over the past few months.

He said that this is not a partisan issue, but an important, very complex issue and that this Committee will work through this legislation. If there are questions the Committee needs to have explained, he will allow those questions. He opened the floor for discussion on **HB 2023**.

There was extensive conversation regarding the merits of passing out **HB 2023**.

Representative Thull made a motion to pass out **HB 2023**, as amended, favorable for passage. Representative Huff seconded the motion.

Representative Brown made a substitute motion to table **HB 2023.** Representative Siegfreid seconded the motion. The motion failed.

Representative Thull closed his motion to move out **HB 2023**, as amended. The motion passed 13-8. The following members requested that their **NO** vote be recorded: Representatives Brown, Brunk, Carlson, George, Gordon, Kelley, Kinzer, Peck and Siegfreid.

HB 2476 - Imposition of a transient guest tax on Department of Wildlife and Parks in certain circumstances.

The Chairman called the Committee's attention to <u>HB 2476</u> and reviewed the contents of the original bill, which will be used for a substitute bill. A document (rs1548) was distributed, which is the excise tax provision (<u>Attachment 1</u>).

Representative Siegfreid made a motion that they take language from **rs1548** and create a substitute bill for **HB 2476** by placing that language therein. Representative Goico seconded the motion. He explained that this adds back the language, removed from **HB 2023** by Representative Owens' motion. It allows any city to levy an excise tax on tickets, or other developmental fees. It guarantees uniformity by expanding K.S.A. 2005 Supp.12-194 for these purposes statewide. There is no cap on the excise tax or ticket tax in the bill. The motion carried.

Representative Siegfreid made a motion to strike the language on page two, the third paragraph. Representative Treaster seconded the motion. The motion carried.

Representative Siegfreid said that the rest of the bill was dedicated to placing in law, given this right, cities would have to vote on additional or increased rates of taxes.

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE House Taxation Committee at 9:00 A.M. on March 10, 2006 in Room 519-S of the Capitol.

There was extensive conversation regarding questions on the definitions of "excise tax" and "development excise tax".

Representative Kinzer made a motion to insert language in K.S.A. 12-194 that would prohibit an excise tax on the privilege of engaging in the business of platting real property. Representative Kelley seconded the motion.

Representative Kinzer closed his motion. The motion failed 8-14.

In response to a Committee request for a statutory explanation of "development excise tax," Secretary Wagnon agreed to provide that information.

Announcements of sub-committee meetings were made.

The meeting adjourned at 12:30. The next meeting is March 13, 2006.